2005

MBNA America Bank, N.A. v. Michael W Goodman : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Utah Code Annotated § 78-2a-3(2)(j).

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The only issue on appeal is whether it reversible error for the Trial Court to grant Defendant Appellee's Motion to Dismiss based on Plaintiff Appellant's admission that the "credit card agreement" was likely unavailable when the stated cause of action was based on the "credit card agreement."

Standard of Review: The standard of review on a motion to dismiss requires the Appellate Court to "accept the factual allegations in the complaint as true and consider all reasonable inferences to be drawn from those facts in a light most favorable to the Plaintiff." *Prows v. State*, 822 P.2d at 766 (citing *St. Benedict's* 811 P.2d at 196).

Issue Preservation. This issue was preserved for appeal at the trial level as set forth on pages 5 and 14 of the Transcript of Oral Argument dated May, 27, 2005.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The underlying case generating this appeal was based on a credit card balance owed, which the Plaintiff sued to recover. Only one hearing was held on the matter, a review hearing on Defendant's Motion to Dismiss. The Trial Court Judge granted Defendant's Motion to Dismiss based on the fact that Plaintiff failed to present a signed writing.

Factual Summary. Plaintiff Appellant filed a complaint on or about March 23, 2005, alleging that an agreement existed between the parties by which the Defendant Appellee obtained loans from the Plaintiff Appellant, and failed to make the required payments under the agreement. (Complaint, Paragraphs 3-7)

The Defendant Appellee filed a motion to dismiss claiming that Plaintiff Appellant did not have a signed agreement to support its claim. (See Defendant's Motion to Dismiss, page 2) At a "Review Hearing" held on May 27, 2005, the Court asked Plaintiff Appellant's counsel whether it had a signed agreement between the parties. Plaintiff Appellant's counsel responded that he had been informed by his client that the Credit Card Application bearing Defendant Appellee's signature was most likely unavailable. (May 27, 2005 Hearing Transcript, Pages 6, 7) The Trial Court then granted Defendant's Motion to Dismiss with prejudice, precipitating this appeal. (May 27, 2005 Hearing Transcript, Pages 6, 7, 14)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

The issue on appeal in this case is not complex or novel. The Trial Court erroneously granted Defendant's Motion to Dismiss based on the lack of a written instrument bearing the Defendant's signature. The only issues to be considered on a motion to dismiss are jurisdiction, venue, and whether the Plaintiff has stated a cause of action upon which relief may be granted. (See URCP 12) In this case, The Plaintiff stated a valid cause of action, and should be allowed to pursue that claim regardless of whether Plaintiff can produce a document bearing Defendant's signature. The District Court's ruling does not permit Plaintiff to conduct discovery, which may allow Plaintiff to discover evidence to support other contract theories. Therefore, it was reversible error for the Trial Court to Grant the Motion to Dismiss, and said decision should be overturned.

ARGUMENT

1. IN REVIEWING THE MOTION TO DISMISS, IT WAS REVERSIBLE ERROR FOR THE TRIAL COURT TO CONSIDER ANY EVIDENCE SUPPORTING THE CLAIMS ASSERTED IN THE COMPLAINT.

The Trial Court erred when it granted the Defendant's Motion to Dismiss based on Plaintiff's inability to present a signed agreement between the Parties. Rule 8 of the Utah Rule of Civil Procedure (URCP), states in part "[a] pleading which sets forth a claim for relief, . . . shall contain (1) a short and plain statement of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief; and (2) a demand for judgment for the relief to which he deems himself entitled." Plaintiff's complaint complies in every way with this rule. The complaint alleged that an agreement existed, that money was owed, and seeks judgment against Defendant Goodman.

Defendant's Motion to Dismiss was solely based on a previous action to confirm an arbitration award granted to the Plaintiff. The Defendant did not claim the complaint was deficient in any way, that the Trial Court lacked jurisdiction or venue, or any other objection stated under Rule 12, URCP. Therefore, the Defendant failed to even allege a valid reason based in law or fact, to support his motion to dismiss, other than the lack of a signed agreement.

At the Review hearing held on May 27, 2005, the Judge specifically stated, that without a document bearing the Defendant's signature the case would be dismissed with prejudice. (See Hearing Transcript, Page 6) This was reversible error. The Court should not even be reaching the issue of whether there was a signed agreement on a Motion to

Dismiss. The District Court did not allow for any other form of agreement to be inferred from the complaint other than a written agreement. Not all enforceable contracts are written. It could be inferred that the agreement was oral agreement, quasi contract, implied contract, or constructive contract. Therefore, the District Court should not have dismissed Plaintiff's complaint based on the finding that no written agreement existed.

A. ASSUMING ARGUENDO, THE DISTRICT COURT DISMISSED THE MATTER UNDER RULE 12(b)(6), THE COURT DID NOT APPLY THE PROPER STANDARD OF REVIEW.

While it is entirely unclear in the record what procedure the District Court used as a basis for its ruling, Plaintiff can only assume the District Court relied on Rule 12(b)(6) URCP. If the Court dismissed the case under Rule 12(b)(6), then it failed to use the proper standard of review. Rule 12(b)(6) URCP provides that the motion is to be treated as a summary judgment motion and both parties are to have the opportunity to present all evidence in accordance with Rule 56 URCP. In this case, the Defendant did not specifically invoke the 12(b)(6) defense. Even if the Defendant's Motion to Dismiss was liberally construed to include a 12(b)(6) defense, the District Court did not allow the Plaintiff to present evidence in accordance with Rule 56 URCP. Rather, the District Court committed reversible error, and summarily dismissed the case.

If the District Court reviewed the Complaint using a 12(b)(6) standard, it erred when it failed to assume all facts as alleged in Plaintiff's Complaint. In *Mounteer v. Utah Power & Light Co.*, the Utah Supreme Court ruled that the standard of review on a 12(b)(6) motion requires the court to review the complaint in the light most favorable to

the Plaintiff, and draw all reasonable inferences therefrom. 823 P.2d 1055 (Utah 1991) In *St. Benedict's Development Co. v. St Benedict's Hosp.*, the Utah Supreme Court held that in reviewing a motion to dismiss under 12(b)(6), the allegations in the compliant are deemed admitted, and that the defendant is merely challenging the ability of the Plaintiff to recover, based on those facts. 811 P.2d at 196. See also, *Colman v. Utah State Land Bd*, 795 P. 2d 622, 624 (Utah 1990).