2005

# MBNA America Bank, N.A. v. Michael W. Goodman : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

### **SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS**

There was no reversible error in Judge Maetani's decision to grant Defendant's Motion to Dismiss, Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment, and Defendant's Motion to Deny Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgment. Judge Maetani has gone to great lengths at Defendant's expense, to provide Smith the opportunity to submit evidence to support his claims. Case after case has been brought against the Defendant that have all ended in the same conclusion, dismissal for lack of evidence, this time, finally, with prejudice. Smith has admitted in open Court that there is no evidence in existence. Who needs any more proof than that? Defendant submits that there is evidence but that Plaintiff will never surrender it because it would incriminate the Plaintiff and prove the fraud that Defendant originally disputed.

Plaintiff should not be granted the opportunity to exploit Defendant with discovery for the purpose of creating "other contract theories." The Complaint set forth Plaintiff's Claims, which have been invalidated by Smith's own testimony and his attachment to the pleading. There are no "other contract theories" stated in the Complaint. Discovery is not intended for making up new things to introduce new claims. Discovery is for the obtaining of evidence to reinforce the claims already made. If Plaintiff doesn't have evidence to support his claims by now, he never

will. Discovery would only serve the Defendant as he requests the same evidence that he has previously requested, and failure of the Plaintiff to supply the agreement would turn into deemed admissions against the Plaintiff. In the end we would have no more than what we have now at the cost of more time and money.

The complaint, to quote Smith's Argument, page 5, "[a] pleading which sets forth a claim for relief,...shall contain (1) a short and plain statement of the claim showing that the pleader is entitled to relief..." (Rule 8 of the Utah Rule of Civil Procedure). (See Appellant's Brief, page 5). The plain statement of Claim doesn't include exploring "other theories." One of the Complaint's basic elements constituting Plaintiff's case is that Smith made a statement, under penalty of perjury, that a true and correct copy of the agreement was attached. It wasn't so. He has suffered no consequence for perjury. In Court, under penalty of perjury he testified that no agreement is available and now wants to be able to continue additional proceedings against Defendant because he claims it was reversible error for Judge Maetani to believe his sworn testimony and lack of submitted evidence.

### **ARGUMENT**

Smith states that, "The only issue on appeal is whether it [was] reversible error for Trial Court to grant Defendant Appellee's Motion to Dismiss based on Plaintiff Plaintiff's admission that the "credit card agreement" was likely unavailable when the stated cause of action was based on the "credit card

agreement.” (See Appellant’s Brief page 3). Only one thing is actually correct in that statement. The issue on appeal is whether the decision of Judge Maetani was reversible error. The falsities presented in that statement are:

First, it was not only the Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss being acted upon. The decision also came as a result of Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment (see Addendum, Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment page 52), and Defendant’s Motion to Deny Plaintiff’s Summary Judgment. Smith had asked for a ruling through Summary Judgment.

Second, Smith claims that the decision was made on a decision based on “Plaintiff Appellant’s admission...” There have been no statements from the Plaintiff Appellant to that effect or any at all. The admission was made by counsel for Plaintiff, none other than Smith, himself, in court, in two different hearings (see Appellant’s Brief, Transcript page 6; and Appellant’s Docketing Statement, Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss #4). Over the course of Plaintiff’s actions against Defendant, Smith has submitted two different Affidavits (see Addendum, Affidavits pages 30-32). Each claimed to have knowledge of Plaintiff’s documents. Each invalidated themselves with the false claim that there were no disputes. Not one claimed that there was a signed agreement in their possession. One Affidavit, submitted with Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment obviously written by Smith, claimed that attached Exhibit “A” was a true and correct copy of the

agreement just as it was written in the Complaint. (See Addendum, Affidavit Canapp page 30).

Third, the phrase that, "... is likely unavailable," is false and meant to deceive the Court. Smith uses this phrase in his "Issues Presented for Review" (see Appellant's Brief, page 3) and again in his "Statement of the Case, Factual Summary" (see Appellant's Brief, page 4). The phrase has never actually been said. A review of the transcript pages that Smith gives for reference (pages 6,7 in his submission, see Appellant's Brief, transcript, pages 6, 7) even shows that there was no such sentiment expressed. Smith had told the Court various times that MBNA doesn't keep the records, period. Smith makes up the "likely unavailable" phrase for the Appellate Court, it was never used in the District Court, and is not representative of the sentiment given in Court. Smith uses it here to deceive the Appeals Court to thinking that the documents might be available if he was granted more time through appeal.

The statement that was actually made was an affirmative confirmation. "Their applications. Unfortunately, yes, your honor," given when Judge Maetani made reference to statements made by Smith in previous hearings. Maetani said, "I am going to dismiss this because, you know, if you, if you refer to a paragraph and say here is the, the agreement, you know, and then, and then if it's like I said. The fact that the, I have to take judicial notice of this I suppose from the last time is you said they, for some reason, MBNA throws their records out, they don't keep their

signed agreements.” (See Appellant’s Brief, Transcript, page 6, lines 2-10). Smith positively confirmed the Judge’s recollection of statements made in earlier hearings by Smith to the fact that MBNA throws out there signed applications. What was actually said in the previous hearing was that the Judge wanted to see the actual signed agreement and an affidavit attesting that it was signed. Smith answered:

Smith: Well I, I, I can tell you know, your Honor, that my client will probably will not be able to provide, um, the original signed agreement because the way their process works, he does not actually sign the application with the terms, well he signs the application which references the terms and conditions.

Judge: Well yah, where is that signed application?

Smith: Well I might be able to obtain that, I might not.

Judge: Well if you don’t, then I’ll kick this case out.

Smith: Okay.

Judge: I’m telling them I want to see it right now, and that with in addition with their affidavit. Okay.

Judge: Well I want to see that... if there is no written instrument with his signature on it...I’ll just dismiss the case . Because I want to see, there’s got to be an agreement.

Smith: Is, is an affidavit evidence sufficient?

Judge: No, there’s got to be a signed agreement.

Smith: Okay.

Judge: ...They got to show proof that I signed some kind of agreement.

Smith: Written statements aren’t, are sufficient?

Judge: No, I want--

Smith: Okay.

Judge: --to see the written instrument.

Smith: Okay. (See Appellant’s Docketing Statement, Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss #4).

Additionally, Smith’s “Factual Summary” (see Appellant’s Brief, page 4) reads like some dime novel with all the fictional story about “counsel responded that he had been informed by his client that the Credit Card Agreement bearing Defendant Defendant’s signature was most likely unavailable. (May 27, 2005

Hearing Transcript, Pages 6, 7).” (See Appellant’s Brief, Transcript, pages 6, 7) Does he really believe that the Appellate Court is going to believe every piece of fiction he can conjure up? Does he believe the Court isn’t going to go back and read those references and see that there is no such representation on the pages he references?

There is not even enough truth in Smith’s only argument really to merit this appeal. The statement that the Complaint was based on a “credit card agreement,” is not entirely correct. The Complaint, item 3 actually states, “Defendant entered into a Credit Agreement with the Plaintiff. A true and correct copy of this Credit Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”.” (See Addendum, Plaintiff’s Complaint, page #3). The Complaint reads a “Credit Agreement” not a “credit card agreement” as stated in Smith’s arguments. As has already been discussed in great detail, the attached “true and correct copy” is a fraud. The only element of truth has also been discussed in detail that the issue of the appeal is whether it is reversible error to have made the decision. True only in that it is the issue of the Appeal, not that there was any reversible error made in the decision.

As this is a frivolous appeal, Smith has grasped at the only hope he had to preserve a part of his livelihood, how much a part of it we don’t know. To do so he had to attempt to make this Court believe that the decision was premature. The Motion for Summary Judgment, was discussed earlier, that Smith has tried to hide from the Appeals Court (see Addendum, Plaintiff’s Motion for Summary Judgment,

page 52). This was the document that Smith attached the fraudulent Affidavit from Gregory Canapp (see Addendum, Affidavit of Canapp, page 30). In Smith's accompanying Memorandum (see Addendum, Plaintiff's Summary Judgement Memorandum, page 54), Smith makes several false statements, one being that there was no dispute on record. In the "Points and Authorities" Smith claims that there exist no genuine issue of material fact and that Plaintiff is entitled to judgment as a matter of law. So, going into the hearing Smith says there are no genuine issues and he is entitled to judgment by law, now he wants this Court to believe that Maetani was premature in giving a ruling.

One last item, even there are more. Defendant also feels that the most casual observer could see beyond what Smith is trying to do here. Smith claims that the Court did not evaluate facts assuming all allegations in the complaint to be valid - well who in their right mind would or could. You can't throw a lie in the Judge's face and expect him to accept it, assuming it to be valid. Smith was the one who presented a fraud as a "true and correct copy of the agreement," perjured himself to its authenticity. Smith also changes his tune here in the Plaintiff's Brief. Previously, we read from the transcript how he positively and definitely confirmed with the Judge that there was no agreement, with the words, "Unfortunately, yes, your Honor." Then in Plaintiff's Brief he used the phrases, "was unlikely available," and "was most likely unavailable." Now, before concluding his Brief, on page 7 (see Appellant's Brief, page 7), he states,

“In this case, the District Court did not evaluate the Motion to Dismiss assuming all allegations in the complaint to be valid, then determine whether a recover was possible under those facts. Instead, the District Court focused solely on the allegation in the complaint that an agreement existed, and made a factual determination that no agreement existed because there may be no signed agreement. Therefore, the District Court misapplied the standard of review, and committed reversible error.”

Every one of these statements by Smith are so full of holes that this document could go on without end. For the sake of brevity, let me point out the change mentioned above. Now Smith uses the phrase, “because there may be no signed agreement.” He already testified right before the decision was rendered, that there is no agreement, that they don’t keep agreements. Now he tries to make this Court believe that records might exist. The assumption of validity cannot be held when you offer as a “true and correct copy” a document that was already ruled as inadmissible as evidence. Smith says that the Court erred in focusing on whether an agreement existed. All allegations in the Complaint were based on the fact that there was an agreement. If there is no agreement there can be no complaint based on a breach of the agreement. Without the contract there can be not breach thereof.

In his Factual Summary Smith states, “Plaintiff...filed a complaint...alleging that an agreement existed between...which the Defendant...and failed to make the required payments under the agreement. (See Appellant’s Brief, page 3). How can you take the agreement out of that statement and hope to have a case. But that is exactly the contradiction he puts before this Court by saying that the Court erred by focusing on the agreement’s existence. One gets the impression that it is okay to

make a claim for relief upon an agreement that someone has breeched, but that you don't need to prove that an agreement really existed.

Smith condemns a factual determination being made that there is no agreement when he provided all the evidence to make that determination. Smith perjured himself by representing the attachment as a "true and correct copy." Smith attached the so called document when the Judge had told him repeatedly that he needed to have a document with a signature. Smith was the only one who told the Judge flat out that there was no agreement, that MBNA doesn't keep the agreements. There has been no affidavits from MBNA saying they throw out their agreements. It was Smith who said that his firm has had a series of cases with no agreements. Smith was the one who requested the original dismissal because he promised the judge that he would, if he couldn't obtain an agreement within two weeks. This goes on and on because these cases against the Defendant have gone on and on. Please see that an end comes to it.

### **CONCLUSION**

Mr. Smith is perpetrating a fraud on this Court and Defendant. He has violated so many rules in making this appeal. His Docketing Statement was beyond the time frame and the law reads no option for late acceptance as was allowed on that issue. It was reversible error for this Court to have granted an extension on the Docketing Statement. Rule 9(a) of Utah Rules of Appellate Procedures states,

“Time for filing. Within 21 days after notice of appeal...” Rule 9(g) states, “Consequences of failure to comply. Docketing statements which fail to comply with this rule **will not be accepted**...(bold added for emphasis)” There is no legal provision for an extension on the docketing statement. He should have never been able to proceed, and Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss should have been granted. Defendant should not have been required to submit this Brief. But such as it is, Defendant has shown that Smith has perjured himself, that he is playing the Appellate Court, using deceptive tactics to provide false information in his Court Documents, has submitted falsified affidavits, and is in multiple violations of the FDCPA. Appellant has demonstrated almost every statement Smith has made to be false, therefore, his conclusions in asking for an Appeal are also false.

Smith tries to make it seem that Judge Maetani’s decision is the improper result of a Motion to Dismiss. The Motion to Dismiss may have been what got us into the hearing but then Smith filed for Summary Judgment. But the real reason, as the record shows from the very beginning of the hearing (see Appellant’s Brief, Transcript, page 6, lines 2-8), it was dismissed because in the Complaint, Smith made reference to a paragraph and said here is the agreement and, taking judicial notice from the previous hearing that Smith had said that they throw their records out.

Judge Maetani was correct in his decision to Dismiss the Case on the grounds that fraudulent evidence was submitted as “true and correct copies” and the

testimony of Mr. Smith that there is no agreement from which Plaintiff can base any claim for relief or breach thereof. For these and all other reasons stated herein, Defendant respectfully requests this Court to affirm Judge Maetani's decision dismissing Plaintiff's claim with prejudice.